Ultra High Brightness Window Displays User Manual



Manual Version UHBHD8

Safety Instructions

- Please keep the display away from any heat sources. Place the display in a stable and well-ventilated place.
- Please handle with care as product contains glass.
- The holes or openings on the display are designed for ventilation. Do not cover or block the ventilation holes or openings with any objects.
- Remove protective covering from the screen before you use the display.



- Shut off the power supply before cleaning. Use a soft lint-free cloth instead of a tissue to wipe the screen.
- You may use a glass cleaner to clean the product as required. However, never spray the cleaner directly onto the display surface.
- Do not attempt to repair this product yourself! Improper disassembly of the product may invalidate the warranty and lead to possible danger
- If you have a problem that cannot be solved using the 'Troubleshooting' guidelines, please contact your supplier.

Attention:

Any displays that are suitable for installing in a window should be mounted with the panel surface a minimum of 100mm from the inside of the window, however we recommend a distance of 200mm to ensure sufficient air circulation between the display and the window. Failure to follow these guidelines may result in failure that will be considered user damage.

Quick Start Guide

This section of the guide is to allow swift set up and use of the unit. Please refer to the main part of the User Guide for full information on use of the unit.

Please follow the steps detailed below:

- 1. Unpack unit and place in desired location.
- Take the power lead from the accessories bag then connect the power lead into the screen (see Figure 2 Inputs Overview) and into a mains outlet. The unit will power on automatically (if it doesn't please ensure the 'AC Switch' is in the on position).
- 3. Make sure the files you wish to play are supported by the unit as shown in the **Supported Media Files** table (Section 4.0)
- 4. On a PC/Laptop copy the files you want to play onto an empty USB drive. These should be in the root directory (without putting them into a folder). Remove the USB from the PC once copied over.
- 5. Insert the USB drive into the one of the USB ports located on the rear of the unit (see **Figure 1 Position of USB ports**).
- 6. The screen should indicate that it is copying the files onto the unit (see **Copying Files from a USB Drive** (section 5.0) for more information). Once completed, the screen will display a message to remove the USB drive.
- 7. Remove the USB drive and the unit will play the stored files on a loop.



Figure 1 Position of USB ports

Table of Contents

Sa	fety Instr	uctions1
Qı	uick Start	Guide2
Та	ble of Co	ntents3
1.	Introd	luction5
	1.1	Box Contents5
	1.2	Ambient Light Sensor (Optional)6
	1.3	Remote Control7
	1.4	Replacing the Remote Control Battery8
2.	Digita	l Signage Player Application9
	2.1	Home Screen9
	2.1.1	Local Date and Time9
	2.1.2	Local Storage10
	2.1.3	Network Status10
	2.2	Setup Menu11
	2.3	Main Settings12
	2.3.1	Work Mode12
	2.3.2	Orientation13
	2.3.3	Time & Date14
	2.3.4	Machine Number15
	2.3.5	Wi-Fi Settings15
	2.3.6	Exit16
	2.4	Advanced Settings17
	2.4.1	System Settings17
	2.4.2	Power On/Off21
	2.4.3	Timer Strategy22
	2.4.4	Network Settings25
	2.4.5	File Management

3.	D	isplay	y Settings	27
	3.1		Source	27
	3.2		System Setting	28
	3.3		Picture	28
	3.4		Exit	29
4.	Su	uppo	rted Media Files	30
5.	Co	opyin	g Files from a USB Drive	31
6.	A	dvert	ising LCD Playlist Editor Software	33
	6.1		Main Menu	33
	6.2		Creating Playlists	34
	6.	.2.1	Add Schedule	34
	6.	.2.2	Add Selected Items	35
	6.	.2.3	Saving	39
	6.	.2.4	Editing Playlists	39
7.	F.,	A.Qs	and Troubleshooting Guide	40
	7.1		How do I change the Work Mode to Wi-Fi so I can connect to my Wi-Fi network?	40
	7.2		How do I connect to a Wi-Fi Hotspot?	43
	7.3		How do I set up synchronisation on my screens?	48
	7.4		How do I play PowerPoint presentations on my display?	51
	7.5		Video Format Conversion	53
	7.6		Connecting the screen to a PC.	58
	7.7		My media file does not fit properly on the screen.	58
	7.8		My media file will not display or is missing from the playlist	58
	7.9		My media files will not update	58

1. Introduction

Congratulations on your purchase of our product. Please read carefully and follow all instructions in the manual before first use.

The product should not be exposed to liquids dripping or splashing and no objects filled with liquids, such as vases, should be placed on the product.

Attention:

- 1. Do not change any default settings when it is unnecessary.
- 2. Keep the product far away from water during installation and use.

1.1 Box Contents

- 1 x Ultra High Brightness Window Displays
- 1 x Power Cable
- 1 x Remote Control (with 2xAAA batteries)
- 1 x Ambient Light Sensor Cable and Control Board
- 1 x Wi-Fi Antenna
- 1 x QR Code for User Manual



Figure 2 Inputs Overview

1.2 Ambient Light Sensor (Optional)

The green port located near the power switch is used for the **Ambient Light Sensor** included in the accessories pack. This can be used if you wish for the screen to change the brightness of the display depending on the amount of light that is being shone onto the sensor bud. This is best used when you wish to reduce energy consumption whilst still being able to get the maximum brightness from the screen on bright days.



Figure 3 Ambient Light Sensor

1.3 Remote Control



Button	Function
POWER/🖒	Power on or off
MENU	Display settings
SETUP	Menu settings
SOURCE/Đ	Input source
A	Home button
5	Back button
	Up (navigation)
◀	Left (navigation)
	Right (navigation)
▼	Down (navigation)
▶/	Play media
	Stop media
	Previous
	Next
丞	Mute
€ +	Raise volume
ц –	Lower volume

Figure 4 Remote Control Overview

1.4 Replacing the Remote Control Battery

- 1. Slide the battery cover off.
- 2. Remove the used batteries.
- 3. Insert the two new AAA batteries with their terminals corresponding to the indicators.
- 4. Put the cover back on.



Figure 5 Changing Batteries

2. Digital Signage Player Application

2.1 Home Screen

The Homepage has different areas which provide information about the screen status.



Press the **Stop Button** (**■**) on the remote control to go to the **Home Screen** If there's any content playing on the screen and you wish to get back to the **Home Screen**,

2.1.1 Local Date and Time

Displays the Local Date and Time of the screen. This can be changed if required as shown in Time & Date (Section 2.3.3).

Local Date and Time
Friday 12/08/2022 12:58:49

2.1.2 Local Storage

The **Local Storage** displays information about the screen such as the hard drive capacity and software versions installed on the screen.



2.1.3 Network Status

The **Network Status** displays information such as if the screen is connected to a **Local/Wireless Network** and if it's communicating with our **Server**.



This **Server Status** will display a tick if the network is communicating with our server. If there is a cross here instead of a tick please see our <u>FAQ</u> on how to solve this. You may need to contact your network administrator if the server connection is not being established.

The **Local Network Status** will display a tick if the screen is connected to either a LAN connection, Wi-Fi Hotspot or mobile broadband provider depending on the <u>Work</u> <u>Mode</u> that is set to.

If you aren't able to get connected please see our <u>FAQ</u> to check why the screen isn't connecting to your network.

2.2 Setup Menu

From the **Home Screen** you can bring up the Main Menu by pressing the 'SETUP' button on the remote control. The main Setup Menu includes the following sub-menus: Work Mode, Orientation, Time & Date, Machine I.D, Exit. There will also be a Wi-Fi Settings sub menu if the Work Mode is set to Wi-Fi.



2.3 Main Settings

2.3.1 Work Mode

Selecting a **Work Mode** option will change the screen to the desired way of displaying content. For example, changing the **Work Mode** to **USB** will allow a USB drive to be placed into one of the USB ports on the screen (see **Figure 2 Inputs Overview**) that will copy over any video or images on the USB drive. See **Copying Files from a USB Drive** for more information. (Copying Files from a USB Drive).

The available Work Mode options are:

USB – To be used as Plug and Play with a USB drive.

Wi-Fi – Connect the screen to a Wi-Fi connection to be used with My Signage Portal.

LAN – Connect the screen to a local network by ethernet cable to be used with <u>My Signage Portal</u>.

Mobile – Connect the screen to a 3G/4G network with a mobile broadband enabled sim card to be used with <u>My Signage Portal</u>.



2.3.2 Orientation

In this sub-menu you can set the screens orientation so you can display your content in the correct orientation. There are 4 orientation options:

- 0° Displays in landscape with the ports on the bottom of the unit.
- 90° Displays in portrait with the ports on the left-hand side of the unit.
- 180° Displays in landscape with the ports on the top of the unit.
- 270° Displays in portrait with the ports on right-hand side of the unit.



2.3.3 Time & Date

On this menu you can set the **Date**, **Time**, **Time Zone**, enable **Sync Time on Startup**, apply **Daylight Savings Time** and lastly select the **Sync Time Now** option to sync the date and time with the <u>My</u> <u>Signage Portal</u> server.



If you wish to change the date or time, highlight and select one of these options with the remote control and a new popup will appear, allowing you to set your desired values by using the on screen '+' and '-' icons.



2.3.4 Machine Number

The **Machine Number** is the unique Licence Number that's associated with every owned screen. Please do not change this unless asked otherwise by the **Technical Support** team as it may prevent you from sending content to the screen remotely.

SETTINGS ADVANCED			0	
Work Mode	14			
Orientation				
Time & Date				
Machine ID				
	0			
	_	Machine Number	74188162	
		Machine ID	74188162	
Exit		Machine Name	NEWUI_1_ASTEST	

2.3.5 Wi-Fi Settings

If the product was purchased as **Networked with Wi-Fi** you can connect to a hotspot here. Start by navigating down the list until you see the hotspot you wish to connect to and press the **Play/Pause Button (HI)** on the remote control.

SETTINGS ADVANCED			
Work Mode			
Orientation			
Wi-Fi Settings			
Time & Date			
Machine ID	ZoomMeeting_5G Protection by way of WPA/WPA2	₹ 4	
	MeetingRoom_5G Protection by way of WPA/WPA2	78	
	MeetingRoom Protection by way of WPA/WPA2	A	
	SyncRouter Protection by way of WPA/WPA2	? ≜	
st Exit			

SETTINGS ADVANCED	\bigcirc		
Work Mode		OfficeAP	
Orientation		Signal Strength Stronger Security Protection by way of WPA/WPA2	
Wi-Fi Settings		Password	
Time & Date		Show Password	
Machine ID		Show Advanced Options	হ
		gwertyui op	
		as dfghjkl	<u>م</u>
		ABC z x c v b n m del	SB .
		clear 123 space !@# back	
			98
		Connect NO	<u></u>
		SA9800_c22d85	
🛧 Exit			
,			

This will bring up a new menu allowing you to enter the hotspot details including the password.

Please make sure the supplied antenna is connected to the **coax connector** (see **Figure 2 Inputs Overview**) for the best signal. For more information on connecting to a network please see our <u>FAQ</u>.

2.3.6 Exit

Selecting the 'Exit' button will exit the Setup Menu. If you have made any changes the system will ask to if you want to reboot the screen so that the changes can take effect, select 'Yes' to proceed.

Work Mode Orientation Time & Date		(
Machine ID	WARNING Data is chan Yes	ged, reboot or not? 8 No			
Exit	°'	90 ⁻	0.	270.	

2.4 Advanced Settings

The Advanced Settings tab opens up advanced options including **System Settings**, **Power On/Off** timer(s), **Timer Strategy** timers, **Network Settings** and a **File Management** area.

2.4.1 System Settings

In this area there are various settings used to further customise the screen to your liking such changing the **Display Language**, adding a **Real Time Clock** to the screen, accessing the **Play Log**, accessing the **Sync Settings**, the **Webview Settings** and the option to **Restore the screen to Factory Settings**. This also includes enabling or disabling the use of the **USB** ports, the **Auto Start** function and the **Standby** function.

Display Language

Change the display language of the **Setup Menu** and **Homepage**. Choices include; **English**, **Chinese** and **Japanese**.



Real Time Clock

This setting allows you to display an overlay clock while content is playing. There are 5 options available:

- Close: The screen doesn't display time (default).
- Top Left: The time will be displayed on top left of the screen.
- Top Right: The time will be displayed on top right of the screen.
- Bottom Left: The time will be displayed on bottom left of the screen.
- Bottom Right: The time will be displayed on bottom right of the screen.

SETTINGS ADVANCED	/ . U				0	
System Setting						
Power On/Off	111					
Timer Strategy						
Network Setting						
File Management	0					
	•					
		Show Clock				
Exit		Top Left	Top Right	Bottom Left	Bottom Right	

Logs

Enable or disable the Touch play log or regular Play Log for content analytics on My Signage Portal.

SETTINGS ADVANCED				0	
System Setting	11				
Power On/Off					
Timer Strategy	- Jane - Starten				
Network Setting					
File Management	Ŭ O				
	*				
	_	Touch play Log			
		Play Log			
		Log Frequency	Every Second	Every Day	
SExit					

USB

i

Enable or disable the **USB** ports on the screen.

Please note: This will disable the use of copying files from a USB stick to the screen.

Scrolling Text Settings

Enable or disable the **Scrolling Text** that can be accessed with software to create more customisable playlists when using **Plug and Play Work Mode**. For more information on this please see the section on the **Advertising LCD Playlist Editor Software** (section 6.0).



Sync Settings

Here you are able to setup the sync options for the screen if you are planning on synchronising multiple screens together through our Content Manage System, <u>My Signage Portal</u>. For information on this please see **How do I set up synchronisation on my screens?** (section 7.3)

Restore to Factory Settings

If you believe something may have gone wrong or you wish for the screen to be back to the factory default, you are able to do that by formatting the application through this setting.

Auto Start

Enable or disable to **Digital Signage Player** application auto starting when the screen is booted up. Disable this if you wish to use an alternative 3rd party application.

Standby

Enable the **Standby** function to lower the power consumption. We do not recommend changing this as it can have an impact on how to the application receives data from the <u>My Signage Portal</u> server.

Webview Settings

Change the WebView default browser when using a Website Zone through the Content Management System, <u>My Signage Portal</u>. The options include:

- **User Agent** Enabling this option will auto play video content on the website and force the website to use the mobile layout instead of desktop layout.
- Desktop Style 1 Uses the old WebView engine: Mozilla/5.0 (Macintosh; U; PPC Mac OS X; en) AppleWebKit/124 (KHTML, like Gecko) Safari/125.1
- **Desktop Style 2** Uses the new WebView engine: Mozilla/5.0 (Windows NT 6.1; WOW64) AppleWebKit/537.36 (KHTML, like Gecko) Chrome/43.0.2357.134 Safari/537.36
- Hardware Acceleration Speed up the length it takes to load up a webpage using the screens hardware.



Page 20 | 59

2.4.2 Power On/Off

Here is where you can set up an automatic on/off timer for the screen should you want it to power on and off automatically at designated times and days. If you do not wish to set on/off times for your screen please set the '**Control Mode**' to '**Manual**'.

SETTINGS ADVANCED			
System Setting	Setting Mode		
Power On/Off	Daily	Weekly	0
Timer Strategy	Control Mode		
Network Setting	Manual	Timer	0
File Management	Always On	Always Off	0
◆ Exit			

There are two **Setting Modes** – '**Daily**', allowing you to set the same on/off times for every day of the week or '**Weekly**', allowing you to set individual on/off times for each day of the week.

SETTINGS ADVANCED			C	2	0	
System Setting		Setting Mode				
Power On/Off		Daily	\bigcirc	Weekly	0	
Timer Strategy		Control Mode				
Network Setting		Manual	0	Timer	۲	
File Management		Always On	0	Always Off	0	
		1			<u>On 07:00 - 17:00</u>	
		2			<u>On 00:00 - 00:00</u>	
		3			Off 00:00 - 00:00	
	_	4			Off 00:00 - 00:00	
	/	5			Off 00:00 - 00:00	
Sexit						

To activate the on/off timer set the '**Control Mode**' to '**Timer**' by using the arrow keys on the remote control and pressing the **Play/Pause Button (>II)**. Next set the '**Setting Mode**' to either '**Daily**' or '**Weekly**'. Finally navigate over to the individual timer(s) and set the on and off times. If you only wish to set one on/off timer use the first timer labelled '**1**'.



2.4.3 Timer Strategy

This setting allows you to schedule your screen to play at different volumes and switch to different AV inputs at different times of the day.



Volume Timer

To enable this feature, first enable the switch (blue). New fields will now appear allowing you to set a default volume level as well as timer fields for setting different volume levels for different periods of the day.

•			
Volu	ume Timer		
Volu	ume 🕘		50/100
1		<u>On 12:00 - 17:00</u>	<u>75/100</u>
2		<u>Off 00:00 - 23:59</u>	<u>0/100</u>
3		<u>Off 00:00 - 23:59</u>	<u>0/100</u>
4		<u>Off 00:00 - 23:59</u>	<u>0/100</u>
5		<u>Off 00:00 - 23:59</u>	<u>0/100</u>

Navigate to a timer field and press the **Play/Pause Button** (**HI**) on your remote control. Activate the timer, set a volume level and also a start and end time. Press the **'Save'** button to save changes.

4				
	1			
	Start Time			<u>12:00</u>
	End Time			<u>17:00</u>
	Volume		•	75/100
		Save		

Port Timer

To enable this feature, first enable the switch (blue). New fields will now appear allowing you to set different AV inputs for different periods of the day.

0	Dest Times		
	Port Timer	Off Digital Signage	00:00 - 00:00
	2	Off Digital Signage	00:00 - 00:00
	4	Off Digital Signage	00:00 - 00:00
	5	Off Digital Signage	<u>00:00 – 00:00</u>
		Port Timer 1 2 3 4 5	Port Timer 1 Off Digital Signage 2 Off Digital Signage 3 Off Digital Signage 4 Off Digital Signage 5 Off Digital Signage

Navigate to a timer field and press the **Play/Pause Button** (**>II**) on your remote control. Activate the timer, set a volume level and also a start and end time. Press the **'Save'** button to save changes.

~7				
	1			
	Start Time		<u>13:00</u>	
	End Time		<u>18:00</u>	
	Port		<u>HDMI</u>	
		Save		

The different inputs available are:

- **Digital Signage** the internal android input currently being used on the screen
- **HDMI** external device which is connected to the screen via HDMI cable
- VGA external device which is connected to the screen via VGA cable

2.4.4 Network Settings

In this area you are able to setup and change various Network Settings such as the **Server Configuration** and **IP Method**. It will also display the physical **MAC Address** of the screen.

	SETTINGS ADVANCED			\bigcirc				
	System Setting							
	Power On/Off							
	Timer Strategy		-14				WIII//////////////////////////////////	
I	Network Setting	6						
	File Management	\mathbb{P}			Server Configuration		>	
					IP Method		>	
					IP Information Display	y		
					TCP Port		4701	
					UDP Port		4700	
	Fyit	/			MAC Address		0C:63:FC:24:E2:DB	
	TY LAR	/						

Server Configuration

In this section you can change the parameters used to establish a connection to the <u>My Signage</u> <u>Portal</u> server.

Server Connection mode	Domain Name Mode	>	
Server Address	www.mysignageportal.com	>	
Server Port	80	>	
Remote Server			
File Server Switch			
			han af the Tashaitant

Please note: Do not change any of these settings unless specifically asked by a member of the **Technical** Support team.

IP Method

In this area you can disable the DHCP default connection and set a static IP. Please do not change any of these settings unless this is needed to connect to a network and is advised by your internal IT/Network technicians.

•		
(DHCP	

2.4.5 File Management

This area provides information about the file system such as the **Total Capacity**, **Used Capacity** and the **Spare Capacity** (free space). If you need to format the internal hard drive you can achieve this by selecting the 'Format' button.

Please no	ote: This will erase all media content stored on the hard drive.	
System Setting Power On/Off Timer Strategy Network Setting File Management		
Exit	Used: Nand Total Capacity: 3.62GB Used Capacity: 1.61GB Spare Capacity: 2.01GB File System: fat32 Format	

3. Display Settings

As well as having a main system menu that can be accessed through your home screen, the unit also has a display setting menu for changing which input source is being displayed as well as altering values such as brightness, contrast and saturation. This can be accessed at any time by pressing the '**MENU**' button on the remote control.

Main Menu	
Source	
System Setting	
Picture	
Exit	

3.1 Source

The source menu allows you to change the video signal input the screen will display. As a default it is set to 'Digital Signage' to display the internal media player input.

Source
НДМІ
VGA
Digital Signage
Exit

3.2 System Setting

Here you can set the **Language**, turn the **Watchdog Auto** function on/off which is used to stop any unwanted displays issues happening on the screen and lastly **Restore to Default** the **Displays Settings** if needed.

System Setting			
Language	English		
Watchdog Auto	Off		
Reset to Default			
Return			

3.3 Picture

In this sub-menu you can alter the different image settings of your screen. To adjust the **Brightness**, **Contrast** and **Colour** of your display, navigate to the **Picture** setting and use the **Left** (◄) and **Right** (►) **navigation buttons** on the remote control to adjust the value accordingly.

Picture			
MODE	User		
Brightness	50		
Contrast	50		
Color	50		
Sharpness	0		
Tint	50		
Color Temperature	User		
Backlight	100		
Return			



Please note: It is recommended not to change the settings unnecessarily.

3.4 Exit

To exit from the **Display Settings Menu**, navigate to 'Exit' and press the **Play/Pause Button (HI)**.

Main Menu
НОМІ
VGA
Digital Signage
Exit

4. Supported Media Files

Required:

Video		
Container	MP4, AVI, MPG	
Codec	MPEG-1, MPEG-2, MPEG-4, XVID, H.264	
Width	1920 (1080 for portrait)	
Height	1080 (1920 for portrait)	
Audio	AAC or MP3	

Recommended:

Format Profile	Main@4.0
Frame Rate	30fps
Standard	PAL
Bitrate	5000kbps
Bitrate Encoding	CBR
Field Order/Scan	Progressive
Audio	AAC or MP3

Required:

Image		
Container	JPEG	
Compression	Baseline	
Colour Mode	RGB	
Width	1920 (1080 for portrait)	
Height	1080 (1920 for portrait)	
Maximum DPI	300	

This unit does not support WMV or FLV video file types.



Please note: Video and image files should be a maximum of 1920x1080 resolution for Landscape orientated screens and a maximum of 1080x1920 resolution for portrait orientated screens.

5. Copying Files from a USB Drive

If the **Work Mode** is set to **USB** (default with Plug and Play purchased screens) you can copy files directly from a USB drive onto the screen to play the content on a loop. Make sure to reference the **Supported Media Files** table (Section 4.0) for the correct formats and resolution of the content.

Step 1

Copy the files you want to play on the screen on to the **USB Drive** in the root directory. Do not put the files into folders, they must be in the main root directory.



Please note: It is recommended to use a USB drive that is **less than 16GB** for the display screen to recognise the USB drive format (FAT32 format). This is usually the default format on USB drives less than 16GB.

Step 2

П

Insert the USB drive into a USB port (see Figure 1 Position of USB ports).

Step 3

The files on the USB drive will then be copied to the internal storage on the screen.



Remove the USB drive.

Copying end			
IS	Skip:	0	ar
	Cover:	0	
	Сору:	5	
	Please remov	ve the USB disk	

Step 5

The content on the USB drive will now play on the screen. If the content isn't playing or didn't copy over, please make sure to check the **Supported Media Files** table (Section 4.0).

6. Advertising LCD Playlist Editor Software

Although this unit can operate without using any additional software, for more advanced applications please download and install the **Advertising LCD Playlist Editor** software from the link below. This will allow you to create playlists and set up schedules without using <u>My Signage Portal</u>.

Advertising LCD Playlist Editor Software

Make sure to reference the **Supported Media Files** table (Section 4.0) for the correct formats and resolution of the content being used on the created playlists.

6.1 Main Menu

Start by opening the application to bring you to the **Main Menu**. The main menu will allow you to either create a new playlist or load and existing playlist from a USB drive.



6.2 Creating Playlists

The Playlist Editor is laid out in a user-friendly way with the primary functions on the left-hand side in easy to follow steps.

6.2.1 Add Schedule

The schedule functions as a timer for the playlists, so you can have between one and eight playlists scheduled to start and end at different times of the day, with up to 50 files in each playlist.

6

Please note: If you enter more than one schedule ensure that the consecutive schedule times do not overlap.

- 1. Click on the 'Add Schedule' Button.
- 2. Type a Schedule name.
- 3. Select preferred start time.
- 4. Select preferred end time.
- 5. Click 'OK'.
- 6. The schedule will appear in the playlist.

Follow the same process to add multiple schedules.

Advertising LCD Playlist Edit	or 3.1	- • ×
Step 1: Add Schedule	—	.Auto
		No.
Step2: Add Items	Add Schedule	
	Schedule Name Schedule 1	
	Start Time 100	
	End Time 20:00	
	OK Cancel	
Step3: Save to Disk		

6.2.2 Add Selected Items

Adding Images

П

- 1. Click the Add Image button.
- 2. Select one of the schedules created from the Add Schedule section.
- 3. Click 'Browse' and locate the image you wish to use.
- 4. Enter a duration time of the image (this is the time it takes to transition to another image on the chosen schedule).
- 5. Choose from the list of available transitions.
- 6. Click 'OK' to add the image file to the chosen schedule.

You can select multiple image files at once to add to a schedule, you can also move each image up or down in the playlist by using the arrow buttons on the right-hand side.

Please note: Before adding a media file please ensure that it has a file name length of 11 characters or less and contains no <u>special characters</u>. For supported file formats please refer to **Supported Media Files**.

Advertising LCD Playlist E	ditor 3.1		= • ×
Step 1: Add Schedule	B- Playlist	Name:Schedule1 Start Time:08:00 End Time:20:00	dente -
	P Add Picture		
Step2: Add Items	Schedule Name	Schedule1	
	File	Browse	
	Duration	5	T
		Duration Range: 3s – 10000s	
e <u>/</u>	Image Switch Effect	0 Random	
Step3: Save to Disk		OK Cancel	
			- -

Adding Audio

i

- 1. Click the Add MP3 button.
- 2. Select one of the schedules created from the Add Schedule section.
- 3. Click 'Browse' and select the desired MP3 file.
- 4. Enter a volume level for the MP3 file.
- 5. Click 'OK' to add the MP3 file to the chosen schedule.

Please note: Before adding a media file please ensure that it has a file name length of 11 characters or less and contains no <u>special characters</u>. You must also add audio files after adding image files.

Advertising LCD Playlist Ed	litor 3.1	- • ×
Step 1: Add Schedule	Playlist ■ Schedule Name:Schedule1 Start Time:08:00 End Time:20:00	
Step2: Add Items	Add Mp3	
I	Schedule Name Schedule 1	1
;		ł
Step3: Save to Disk		

Adding Video

- 1. Click the Add Video button.
- 2. Select one of the schedules created from the Add Schedule section.
- 3. Click 'Browse' and select the desired video file.
- 4. Click 'OK' to add the video file to the chosen schedule.

Please note: Before adding a media file please ensure that it has a file name length of 11 characters or less and contains no <u>special characters</u>. You cannot add videos and MP3 audio files in the same schedule.

Advertising LCD Playlist Editor 3.1

Step1: Add Schedule

Playlist

Step1: Add Schedule

Playlist

Schedule Name: Schedule1

Schedule 1 Start Time: 08:00 End Time: 20:00

	Schedule N	Name:Schedule1 Start Time:08:00	End Time:20:00	N.C.
Step2: Add Items	🖳 Add Video			
I	Schedule Name File	Schedule 1	Browse	
		Please note: When displaying a High Definition video please use .avi , .mp4 or .ts format.		J
Step 3: Save to Disk				+

Adding Scrolling Text

- 1. Click the Add Scroll Message button.
- 2. Enter the message you would like to run across the bottom of the screen.
- 3. Click 'OK' to add the desired message to the schedule.

If you have a pre-existing text file (.txt) containing your message, highlight the 'Import from file' checkbox and click 'Browse'. Locate and select the desired text file followed by clicking 'OK'.



6.2.3 Saving

- 1. Insert a USB drive into your PC and make sure there are no files showing on the drive.
- 2. Click 'Step3: Save to Disk'.
- 3. Click 'Browse' and select the USB drive as the location of the playlist and files.
- 4. Click 'Save'.

H

Please note: It is recommended to use a USB drive that is **less than 16GB** for the display screen to recognise the USB drive format (FAT32 format). This is usually the default format on USB drives less than 16GB.

Advertising LCD Playlist Ec	fitor 3.1	- • ×
Step 1: Add Schedule	Playlist Schedule Name:Schedule1 Start Time:08:00 End Time:20:00	
Step2: Add Items	Save To Disk	
Step3: Save to Disk		-

6.2.4 Editing Playlists

- 1. From the main menu click 'LOAD EXISTING PLAYLIST'.
- 2. Locate and select a playlist to edit.
- 3. Select the item you wish to edit and click the 'Edit' button.

Deleting Items

To delete media files within a playlist, select the media file and click 'Delete' located on the righthand side of the application. The media file will then be removed from the playlist.

7. F.A.Qs and Troubleshooting Guide

7.1 How do I change the Work Mode to Wi-Fi so I can connect to my Wi-Fi network?

Step 1

Press the Stop Button (**■**) on the remote control to stop the currently playing content on the screen.

Stop Stop Our display is currently in USB model your supplier or going to MySignaged	Current Playlist Open Data Invalid	tal It can be upgraded by contacting	Machine ID: 74188162
Local Date and Time	Local storage	Network Status	U coa

Step 2

Press the **SETUP Button** on the remote control to bring up the **Setup Menu**.



Whilst on the default menu, 'Work Mode', navigate over to the right side of the display using the arrows keys on the remote control and press the Play/Pause Button (**>II**) on the 'Wi-Fi' option.



Step 4

Navigate over to and select the 'Exit' button at the bottom left of the display.



Press 'Yes' to save the settings and reboot the screen into **WI-FI Work Mode**.

WARNING	
Data is change	d, reboot or not? 8
Yes	No

7.2 How do I connect to a Wi-Fi Hotspot?

Step 1

Press the Stop Button (**■**) on the remote control to stop the currently playing content on the screen.

(I) Stop	Current Playlist Wait For The Operation		
m	ny signage por	rtal	
			Machine ID: 74188162
Local Date and Time	Local storage Total: 3.62GB Used: 1.61GB Free:2.01GB	WF7 Network Status Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server Server S	
Friday 12/08/2022 12:58:49	Software Version MYSP_UHE-1004062800 Screen Ohrer Version 22.2.10273.A1U Android Version:20211109.174556	Local P: 192.168.1.101 Mask: 255.255.255.0	

Step 2

Press the **SETUP Button** on the remote control to bring up the **Setup Menu**.

SETTINGS ADVANCED			0	
Work Mode				
Orientation				
Wi-Fi Settings				
Time & Date				
Machine ID	ZoomMeeting_5G Protection by way of	f WPA/WPA2	ବଳ	
	MeetingRoom_5G Protection by way of	FWPA/WPA2	78	
	MeetingRoom Protection by way of	f WPA/WPA2	ବିଜ	
	SyncRouter Protection by way of	(WPA/WPA2	ବଳ	
Exit				

Navigate to 'Wi-Fi Settings' and select this option with the Play/Pause Button (>II).

SETTINGS ADVANCED	Z . O		0	
Work Mode				
Orientation				
Wi-Fi Settings				
Time & Date				
Machine ID		ZoomMeeting_5G Protection by way of WPA/WPA2	78	
		MeetingRoom_5G Protection by way of WPA/WPA2	7 8	
		MeetingRoom Protection by way of WPA/WPA2	R	
		SyncRouter Protection by way of WPA/WPA2	ଟଳ	
Exit				

Step 4

Navigate to the WI-FI Network you wish to connect to and press Play/Pause Button (>II).



Whilst the cursor is on the white box press the **Play/Pause Button (HI)** to bring up the **On-Screen Keyboard**.



Please note: You can also select the 'Show Password' option to see the password entered.

Step 6

i

Type in the networks password and select the 'back' button on the keyboard when finished.

Sign	al Strength	Stronger		
Secu	rity	Protection	by way of Wi	Pa/WPa2
Pass	word	45245635	65	
Show Password				
	Show Advanced Op	otions		
+	1	2	3	del
-	4	5	6	abc
*	7	8	9	!@#
/ =		0		back

Navigate over to and select 'Connect' with the Play/Pause Button (HI).

SETTINGS ADVANCED		
Work Mode		
Orientation		
Wi-Fi Settings	OfficeAP	
Time & Date	Signal Strength Stronger	
Machine ID	Security Protection by way of WPA/WPA2 Password 4524563565	Ŷ
	Show Password	₹ 1
	Connect NO	sê.
	MR_FC54D8 Protection by way of WPA2	28
	AllseeGuest	ই
A a u	SA9800_c22d85	\$
Exit		

Step 8

Select the 'Exit' button or press the **Back Button** (\bigcirc) on the remote control to go back to the **Homepage**.



Check that the network is showing two ticks as below. If this is showing any crosses make sure to check you have entered your Wi-Fi password correctly and see our FAQ for more help.



7.3 How do I set up synchronisation on my screens?

Step 1

Press the **Stop Button** (**■**) on the remote control to stop the currently playing content on the screen.



Step 2

Press the 'SETUP' button on the remote control to bring up the Setup Menu then select the 'Advanced' option by navigating over to the Icon using the arrow keys on the remote control and pressing the Play/Pause Button (HI).



Step 3

SETTINGS ADVANCED					
System Setting	11				
Power On/Off					
Timer Strategy					
Network Setting					
File Management		Display Language	>	Sync Setting	>
		Screen Resolution	1920*1080 50Hz	Restore to Factory Settings	>
		Real Time Clock	>	Auto Start	
		Play Log	>	Standby	
		USB		Webview Settings	>
Exit		Scroll Text Setting			

Navigate over to 'Sync Setting' and select this with the Play/Pause Button (HI).

Step 4

Turn the switch on to access the sync features.



For the 'Sync Role option one of the screens **must** be a 'Host' so that the other screens follow this one in sequence. For the other screens, you will only need to turn the switch on and leave them as a 'Slave'.

•					
	Sync Setting		Sync Group	Sync Mode	
(Sync Role	Host 🔘 Slave 🔵			
			1	1	

Slave Screen(s)

•					
	Sync Setting		Sync Group	Sync Mode	
	Sync Role	Host 🚫 Slave 🔘			
			1	1	

Please note: There must always be one 'Host' screen otherwise the screens will not sync.

Step 6

Н

Back out of this menu using the **Back Button** (℃) on the remote control and exit out the menu by selecting 'Exit' on the bottom left of the menu.

Optional

The '**Sync Group'** can be changed to a different number if you have more than one set of screens connecting to the same network and you wish for them to synchronise separately from each other. In this case you would change all of those specific screens to **Sync Group 2**.

7.4 How do I play PowerPoint presentations on my display?

You can save a PowerPoint presentation as a JPEG File Interchange Format (.JPG) as recommended in **Supported Media Files** table (Section 4.0).

- 1. Create or open a PowerPoint presentation.
- 2. Click File > Save As.
- 3. Enter a File name.
- 4. Click on 'Save as type' scroll down and find the file extension 'JPEG file interchange format', as shown in the image below.

	PowerPoint Presentation PowerPoint Macro-Enabled Presentation	
	PowerPoint 97-2003 Presentation	
	PDF	
Save As	XPS Document	
	PowerPoint Template	
	PowerPoint Macro-Enabled Template	
	PowerPoint 97-2003 Template	
	Office Theme	
n Organize 🔹 Ne	ev PowerPoint Show	
	PowerPoint Macro-Enabled Show	
HD8 General	PowerPoint 97-2003 Show	
Pictures	PowerPoint Add-in	
	PowerPoint 97-2003 Add-in	
PF 🗧 User Manual	PowerPoint XML Presentation	
	MPEG-4 Video	
P Microsoft Power	^{vé} Windows Media Video	
	GIF Graphics Interchange Format	
🕉 Dropbox	JPEG File Interchange Format	
a 🗖	PNG Portable Network vaphics Format	
a 🗖 This PC	TIFF Tag Image File Format	
Desktop	Device Independent Bitmap	
	Windows Metafile	
/s	Enhanced Windows Metafile	
File name:	: Outline/RTF	
Courses have a	PowerPoint Picture Presentation	
Save as type:	Strict Open XML Presentation	
Authors	OpenDocument Presentation	
/ autors.		
 Hide Folders 	Tools 🔻 S	ave Cancel

- 5. Click Save.
- 6. A message will appear asking if you would like to save all slides as JPEG's
- 7. Once you have selected your option, The JPEG images will be saved and are ready to use within a playlist or to upload to a storage device.

If you wish to use a PowerPoint Presentation with animations and transitions included you can save the file as an .MP4 and use this as a video instead.

2	Save As $\leftarrow \rightarrow \checkmark \uparrow$	PowerPoint Presentation PowerPoint Macro-Enabled Presentation PowerPoint 97-2003 Presentation PDF XPS Document PowerPoint Template PowerPoint Macro-Enabled Template PowerPoint 97-2003 Template
cen	Organize 🔹 Nev	Office Theme PowerPoint Show PowerPoint Macro-Enabled Show PowerPoint 97-2003 Show
eD supp	🔀 Pictures 🚞 User Manual	PowerPoint Add-in PowerPoint 97-2003 Add-in PowerPoint XML Presentation
s P	P Microsoft Powe	MPEG-4 Video Windows Media Video GIF Graphics Interchange Format
d a	ॐ Dropbox ➡ This PC	JPEG File Interchange Format PNG Portable Network Graphics Format TIFF Tag Image File Format
	Desktop	Device Independent Bitmap Windows Metafile
ows	File name:	Enhanced Windows Metafile Outline/RTF
	Save as type:	PowerPoint Picture Presentation Strict Open XML Presentation
	Authors:	
	∧ Hide Folders	Tools 🔻 Open Cancel

For the best portrait resolution, you can use the following **PowerPoint Page Setup**:

- Width: 42.6cm
- Height: 24cm (16:9 Ratio)

7.5 Video Format Conversion

If the video file is not playing properly on the screen or it does not meet the requirements of the **Supported Media Files** table (Section 4.0), please use the following free **Video Converter** tool, **Format Factory**.

Step 1

Download and install the free Video Converter software for Windows Vista/7/8/10/11 named Format Factory.

https://format-factory.en.softonic.com/

Step 2

Open the Format Factory software once installed.



On the left-hand window pane select 'MP4'.

FormatFactory X64 5.9.0			- 8 ×
TASK SKIN LANGUAGE	OPTION HELP		
Cutput Folder 🔞	Dption 📄 Remove 🔀 Clear List	Stop Start Store Please download official version	
Video	Preview	Source	Output / Convert State
-> MP4			
-> MKV			
-> GIF			
-> WebM			
Video Joiner & M			
Audio			
Picture			
Document			
ROM Device\DVD\C			
G Utilities			
C:/Users/lcdsu/Videos/Fo	rmat Factory 🔽 Use Multi-Threads		Elapsed Time : 00:00:00 After Converting : Shut Down Computer 📃 Complete Notif

Step 4

Select the 'Add Files'.

-> MP4		×
Optim	num quality and size	Output Setting
Preview	Media information	
	Add Files	
		Add Music
Append setting name [Optimum quality and size]		
C:/Users/lcdsu/Videos/Format Factory		⊘ ОК

Select the file you wish to convert and press 'Open'.

-> MP4 Please select files × \leftarrow \rightarrow \sim \uparrow ■ > USB Drive (D:) ~ C ✓ Search USB Drive (D:) - -? Organise Mew folder 🔶 Quick access 😽 Dropbox This PC - USB Drive (D:) Part Network ASDA 2 File name: ASDA 2 ~ All Supported Video Files (*.rm $\,\, \sim \,\,$ Open Cancel

Step 6

Click 'Output Setting'.

-> MP4					_ 🗆 X
	Optimum quality and size) (Output S	Setting
Preview	Media information				
	ASDA 2.mp4 49.91M, 1920×1080, 6.96Mbps, 00:00:56	Div	vide		Option
	E Add Files				
		Add Music	[]-	F	Add Files
Append setting name [0	Optimum quality and size]				
C:/Users/lcdsu/Videos	/Format Factory			\bigcirc	ОК

Make sure the 'Video Encode' is set as 'MPEG(Xvid)' for the best quality and to change the 'Video Size' to the recommended resolution is as shown on the Supported Media Files table (Section 4.0). For example, for a Landscape video this will need to be 1920 x 1080 whilst a Portrait video will be instead be 1080 x 1920.

Video Setting	_ □
💿 Video 🛛 🗾 Audio 🗐 Subtitle 📑 Other	😳 Watermark
w Size Limit	Off
Video Encode	MPEG4(Xvid)
🕎 Video Size	1920x1080
≈ Bitrate	Default
🚳 CRF	Off
GPU	Off
🖉 FPS	Default
Aspect Ratio	Automatic
😢 Encode 2 Pass	No
Key Frame Interval	Default
🔁 Deinterlace	No
🐼 Rotate	No
X Mirror	No
╞ Y Mirror	No
🔅 Filter	Off Off
🛑 Fade In	Off
Fade Out	Off
🔲 Anti-Shake	Off
Denoise	No
Reverse	No
Cancel	Default 🔗 OK

Step 8

Select the 'OK' button once you are happy with this.



Select the 'OK' button again.

-> MP4		_ 🗆 X
	Optimum quality and size	Output Setting
Preview	Media information	
	ASDA 2.mp4 49.91M, 1920x1080, 6.96Mbps, 00:00:56	Divide Divide Option
	E Add Files	
		Add Music
Append setting name [Optimum quality and size]		
C:/Users/lcdsu/Videos/Format Factory	▼	ОК

Step 10

Select the 'Start' button to begin the conversion process.



Step 11

Once the process is finished, select the folder icon to find your new converted video file.

	Output / Convert State		
-	-> MP4		
[Completed	47.21M (94%)	

7.6 Connecting the screen to a PC.

If your PC/Laptop has a HDMI output then you may connect this to your screen to use as an external display. Simply connect one end of a **HDMI** cable to the screens **HDMI** input (see **Figure 2 Inputs Overview**Figure 4) and the other to your PCs **HDMI** output port. Using this method will carry both your PCs visual and audio signals.

If your PC does not have a **HDMI** output you can connect it to the screen using a **VGA** cable instead. Please be aware this connection does not carry audio signal. If you wish the audio signal from your PC to be sent to the screen as well, this can be achieved by using a male-to-male 3.5mm audio jack cable.

To change the input source of your screen, press the 'SOURCE' button located on the top righthand corner of your remote control (see Figure 4 Remote Control Overview). Next, navigate to your desired source and press Play/Pause Button (**HI**) on your remote control.

7.7 My media file does not fit properly on the screen.

If your media is being displayed with black edges please refer to the **Supported Media Files** table (Section 4.0). This has happened because the file does not have a 16:9 aspect ratio (1920x1080). Please resize file to 1920x1080 pixels and try loading the media onto the display once again.

7.8 My media file will not display or is missing from the playlist.

In this situation the first step to take is to start with a blank USB drive. Copy one supported picture file (see **Supported Media Files** table (Section 4.0) onto the blank USB drive and insert this into the unit. If this works there are most likely one or more unsupported files or folders on your original playlist.

In this case please check first that the media file is the correct size to fit the screen –**1920x1080** pixels. If it is any bigger than this it is likely the media file will not display.

7.9 My media files will not update.

If you are having problems updating your display follow these steps to ensure it is not a technical issue.

- 1) Ensure that there are no additional unsupported files or folders stored on the USB drive.
- 2) Make sure the USB drive is firmly inserted into USB slot
- 3) Before contacting your supplier try another USB drive to be certain this is not the fault.

See section **Supported Media Files** table (Section 4.0) for more information.